
        Town of Charlotte  1 
DEVELOPMENT REVIEW BOARD MEETING 2 

Meeting Conducted at Town Hall and via Teleconference  3 
February 26, 2025 4 

  5 
Approved at the March 12, 2025 meeting the Development Review Board 6 

Development Review Board: Charles Russell (Chair), Gerald Bouchard (Vice Chair), Alexa Lewis, 7 
Brandon Tieso, Doug Paton.    8 

Staff: Aaron Brown, Zoning Administrator.    9 

OTHERS: Frank Tenney, Paul Plante, Claudia Mucklow, Susan Blood, Clark Hinsdale, Adam 10 
Hausmann   11 
 12 
Posted Agenda:  13 
7:00 PM  Call to Order; changes to agenda (if any)  14 
7:02 PM  Public Comment (not pertaining to pending applications)  15 
7:05 PM  DRB 25-114-SK Hinsdale-Hausmann – sketch plan review – Subdivision Amendment to 16 

adjust boundary at 3768 Spear Street and 985 Bingham Brook Road  17 
7:30 PM  Review & Approve Meeting Minutes: draft DRB Minutes, February 12, 2025  18 
7:35 PM  Review & Approve Draft Decisions: 25-003-BA Thurgate-Sterling Homes  19 
7:45 PM  Joint Meeting Debrief 8:00 PM DRB Rules of Procedure  20 
8:30 PM  Adjourn 21 
 22 
CALL TO ORDER:  23 

Chair Charles Russell called the meeting to order at 7:03pm.  24 
 25 
CHANGES TO AGENDA:   26 
 Alexa Lewis added discussion of the Selectboard Handbook which is currently being developed.  27 
 28 
Public Comment: None.  29 
 30 
DRB 25-114-SK Hinsdale-Hausmann – sketch plan review – Subdivision Amendment to adjust 31 
boundary at 3768 Spear Street and 985 Bingham Brook Road: 32 
 Russell asked about any ex parte communications or conflicts of interest; none noted. Clark 33 
Hinsdale opened the discussion with background information on his history with farming and 34 
conservation in Charlotte.  35 
 Hinsdale said the boundary line adjustment is also in the preapplication process with the 36 
Vermont Land Trust. The intent is for Adam Hausman’s farm workers to have housing. Hinsdale plans 37 
to conserve more land adjacent to land he has already conserved. 38 
 Hinsdale commented on the role of the Charlotte Conservation Commission (CCC). Specifically, 39 
it is not the place of the CCC to comment on legalities or whether a project conforms to the Town Plan. 40 
Claudia Mucklow agreed with Hinsdale assessment and noted that the CCC is advisory in nature.  41 
 Russell referred to Table 2.5 (E) Dimensional Standards, in the Staff Report. The Report notes 42 
that the Hinsdale lot will likely not have 300 feet of road frontage after the proposed lot line adjustment. 43 
Russell asked the applicants to speak to this. Hinsdale said the lot currently has 593 feet of road 44 
frontage, therefore having 300 feet of road frontage for two lots would not be possible. However, it was 45 
a part of a previously approved Planned Residential Development (PRD), which allows the 46 



page 2 Development Review Board 02/26/2025 
 
Development Review Board to modify dimensional requirements. Hinsdale also spoke to the irregular 47 
lot shapes which are necessitated by practicality.  48 
 Lewis asked about road frontage on Spear Street and suggested a path for both lots to have 300 49 
feet of road frontage. The Hausmann lot has over 1,500 feet of frontage on Bingham Brook Road. 50 
Gerald Bouchard pointed out that not all lots on Spear Street have 300 feet of road frontage.  51 
 Mucklow asked if the Development Review Board (DRB) had considered the status of the 52 
previous PRD. Specifically, did a previous merger negate the PRD? Russell said that Lewis’s suggestion 53 
would eliminate the need for a waiver of road frontage requirements.  54 
 Hinsdale asked if Hausmann could have 593 feet of frontage, and Hinsdale have a right of way. 55 
Russell said that it could be permitted within a PRD. 56 
 Hinsdale asked if the Board is leaning in any direction. Russell said that Lewis’ suggestion 57 
eliminates the frontage issue.  58 
 Brandon Tieso asked if the Board could approve the irregular lot shapes. Russell read from the 59 
Land Use Regulations’ language allowing for irregular lot shapes in certain circumstances. Lewis added 60 
that there is a purpose for the irregular lot shapes.  61 
 Russell suggested classification of the application and requested waivers. Aaron Brown 62 
referenced the applicants’ request for a waiver from surveying the entire properties. Hinsdale said an 63 
entire survey has been completed in the past. Lewis asked about building envelopes. Russell responded 64 
that the applicants are not proposing new lots. Discussion and consensus to continue Sketch to determine 65 
the status of the previous PRD before making a classification.  66 
 67 
Review & Approve Meeting Minutes: draft DRB Minutes, February 12, 2025:  68 

MOTION by Alexa Lewis; seconded by Gerald Bouchard, to approve the DRB meeting 69 
minutes for February 12, 2025, as amended. VOTE: 5 ayes, motion carried.  70 
 71 
Review & Approve Draft Decisions: 25-003-BA Thurgate-Sterling Homes:  72 

MOTION by Alexa Lewis; seconded by Brandon Tieso, to approve the draft decision for 73 
DRB‐25‐03‐BA Thurgate‐Sterling Homes, as amended. VOTE: 4 ayes, motion carried. Gerald 74 
Bouchard was recused.  75 
 76 
Selectboard Handbook:  77 
 Russell suggested that this item be added to the agenda for the March 12th meeting to allow time 78 
for review of the draft.  79 

 80 
Joint Meeting Debrief 8:00 PM DRB Rules of Procedure: 81 
 Lewis said review of mapping illustrated the Development Review Board’s need for guidance 82 
when prioritizing areas of high public value.  83 
 Russell asked Mucklow to elaborate on how the Development Review Board could be more 84 
collaborative. Mucklow responded that collaboration must be across all boards. Mucklow said she felt 85 
negativity in response to the CCC’s suggestions.  86 
 Mucklow discussed her attempts to solicit updated mapping assistance from the Chittenden 87 
County Regional Planning Commission.   88 
 Russell pointed out that the next Joint Meeting was not scheduled, and draft minutes were not 89 
approved.  90 
 91 

MOTION by Brandon Tieso; seconded by Gerald Bouchard, to adjourn the meeting. 92 
VOTE: 5 ayes, motion carried. The meeting was adjourned at 8:21pm.  93 
 94 
Minutes respectfully submitted: 95 



page 3 Development Review Board 02/26/2025 
 
Nicole Burnell, Recording Secretary with edits by Aaron Brown 96 


